Glen Innes Sevenn Council

Guide to Applying for Employment Human Resources

October 2019





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Equal Employment Opportunity	3
Position Description	4
The Contact Person	4
Introduction To Selection Criteria	4
The Selection Process	5
Employment Eligibility	7
Child-Related Employment	7
National Criminal History Checks	7
Your Application	7
Selection Criteria	8
Your Interview	9
Reference Checks	10
Pre-Employment Functional Assessment	11
Probation Period	11
Confidentiality	11

GLEN INNES SEVERN COUNCIL - JOB APPLICATION GUIDE

Thank you for your interest in the recently advertised vacancy with Glen Innes Severn Council.

Council selects applicants by assessing their relative suitability and merit for employment in relation to the essential functions of the advertised position, and specifically by assessing their ability to meet the selection criteria provided in the position description.

This guide has been prepared to assist you with the preparation of your application, and to give you a more complete picture of the advertised position. Basic information is provided on how to apply for the position and how to prepare for your interview.

If you have any further questions, please do not hesitate to speak to the contact officer specified in the job advertisement. He or she will be pleased to assist you with additional information or will refer you to someone who has the information that you seek.

If you have any questions in relation to actual application process please contact the Human Resources contact officer specified in the advertisement.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Glen Innes Severn Council is an equal opportunity employer. The Council's recruitment and selection policy and procedures are based on the principles of equity and merit.

Equal employment opportunity (EEO) is the assurance of conditions in which all applicants have an equal chance to seek and obtain employment. EEO reinforces merit-based selection as it requires applicants to be selected and treated on the basis of their ability to do the job. Merit-based selection is an assessment of an applicant's abilities, skills, knowledge, qualifications, and potential, relative to those of other applicants against selection criteria set down in the position description. A merit-based recruitment and selection process involves a range of activities designed to ensure:

- Fair and open competition;
- A systematic and consistent process;
- Processes that do not unfairly discriminate at any stage;
- Skilled and impartial selection panels;
- Selection criteria that reflect the actual and realistic requirements of the position.

Council's recruitment and selection process

 Recruitment process Vacancy advertised Applications received and acknowledged Assessment Process Selection panel formed Applicants short-listed ASSESS Candidates notified (from shortlist) Candidates interviewed •Interview assessment Reference checks Pre-employment checks conducted Recommendation for appointment Post-selection Process Unsuccessful applicants notified SELECT (interviewed - verbally and in writing) Successful candidates notified of outcome after pre-medical screening •Induction process (if applicable)

POSITION DESCRIPTION

The position description (PD) is the major source of information regarding the position that you are applying for

You should read this document very carefully. It includes the following information:

- Details of the position, including title, location, grade, salary and special employment conditions and benefits;
- Job summary, duties and responsibilities;
- Organisational relationships, that is, who the position reports to and who it supervises;
- Financial responsibilities and limits to financial authority;
- Representative qualifications, skills and abilities;
- A summary of physical demands and the work environment;
- SELECTION CRITERIA and other pre-employment conditions that must be met.

THE CONTACT PERSON

The advertisement for the position will nominate a contact person, who is usually the supervisor/manager for the position being advertised. It is the responsibility of this person to answer all specific enquiries in regard to the position.

There will also be a nominated contact person from Human Resources who is available to assist with any questions in relation to the application process and submission of applications.

If you have an enquiry in regard to the vacancy or your application, at any stage of the recruitment or selection process, please feel free to speak to the contact person. He or she is there to assist you and will treat all enquiries with respect and confidentiality.

INTRODUCTION TO SELECTION CRITERIA

You will note that this guide makes repeated references to 'selection criteria', which can be found in the Person Specification that forms part of the Position Description. When completing your application, it is essential that you address the selection criteria for the position that you have applied for.

If this is the first time that you have encountered selection criteria, you may be experiencing some confusion over the term. Selection criteria are simply those work-related skills, abilities, experience, knowledge and/or qualifications that are considered to be necessary for the competent performance of the essential duties and tasks of the position. They are determined by reference to the job's functions.

For more detailed information on selection criteria, refer to Pages 8 and 9 in this Guide.

Failure to adequately address the selection criteria in your application may prevent the Selection Panel from accurately assessing your suitability for the position and may exclude you from further consideration at the short-listing stage.

THE SELECTION PROCESS

The four stages in the selection process are as follows:

1. Shortlisting of Applicants

The Selection Panel will assess all applications for the position and will create a shortlist of those applicants that, based on their relative merit, will proceed to the next stage of the selection process.

During the shortlisting stage, the Selection Panel will:

- Read all applications for the position.
- Compare the information provided in each application with other applications and the selection criteria.
- Assess, using the selection criteria, applicants' relative merit in relation to the vacant position.
- Create a shortlist of applicants that will proceed to the next stage. Shortlisted applicants will be contacted and invited to participate in further assessment. Unsuccessful applicants will be advised accordingly.

2. Final Selection

At this stage of the selection process, the Selection Panel will use selection methods to reduce the shortlisted applicants to a single recommended applicant. Depending on the nature of the position and the quality of applicants, one or two default nominees may also be chosen. The default nominee(s) may be offered employment in the event that the recommended applicant does not take up duty.

The Selection Panel has a number of possible selection methods at its disposal. These may include one or more of the following:

- Structured interviews, where each applicant is asked the same set of questions relating to the selection criteria.
- Work assessments, in which applicants are required to carry out task(s) similar to that required in the position.
- Aptitude or ability tests, for example, typing tests, mathematical tests.

3. Verification of Prior Employment and Qualifications

You will be asked to supply the details of at least two referees. Preferably, these should be people that are able to comment on your previous work experience, although it is acknowledged that this will not be possible if this is the first job that you have applied for.

The Selection Panel will conduct reference checks before an offer of employment is made, and may also conduct checks with relevant educational institutions and/or training providers to verify applicants' qualifications and other credentials.

4. Feedback on Your Application and Interview

The convenor of the Selection Panel will be available for feedback and advice on applications and/or interviews at the conclusion of the selection process. Unsuccessful applicants will be advised in writing of the convenor's contact details. It is intended that this advice will assist all applicants with future applications and interviews, particularly in relation to merit-based selection processes and selection criteria.

Recruitment Process

The following chart depicts what you can anticipate to happen with your application:

- •Obtain material necessary to prepare your application, such as position description and job application guide Prepare and submit your application online Application received at Council Acknowledgement of application forwarded to applicants After closing date all applications assessed by selection panel • Suitable candidates will undertake McQuaig Assessment •Short listed applicants notified and interview arrangements made •Unsuccessful applicants notified in writing •Interviewed applicants assessed for suitability to the position Suitable applicant/s undertakes pre-employment national criminal history check and childrelated employment screening Suitable applicant/s undertakes pre-employment functional assessment* • An offer of employment is issued to the preferred applicant Successful applicant accepts and signs letter of offer outlining employment terms and conditions. If negoti of any terms or conditions is required the relevant person must be contacted •All applicants whom have been interviewed, but are unsuccessful will be notified in writing
- * Before a prospective employee can commence with Glen Innes Severn Council, a pre-employment functional assessment screening is conducted to ensure that the candidate is physically fit for employment in that particular field. Council will cover the costs of this assessment.

EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY

Only Australian Citizens, permanent residents or people holding a valid working visa will be offered positions with Glen Innes Severn Council unless the position is otherwise designated. You must indicate your residency status in your application and you may be required to provide one of these documents as proof:

- Australian Birth Certificate
- Australian Citizenship Certificate
- Passport including a valid work Visa for Australia

CHILD-RELATED EMPLOYMENT

Council has a number of positions that have been identified as child-related employment in accordance with the NSW Child Protection (Prohibited Employment) Act. It is an offence for a person convicted of a serious sex offence to apply for these positions. Advertisements for vacant positions will advise applicants if a position involves child-related employment.

Recommended applicants will be required to pass appropriate employment screening, including referee and discipline checks, criminal record checks and certain apprehended violence order checks before an offer of employment will be made.

If you are applying for a position that involves child-related employment, you must have a valid_"Working With Children" Check application/verification number, which can be applied for online at www.kids.nsw.gov.au

All information gained through employment screening will be treated with the utmost confidentiality by Council and will be held in a secure file, which can be accessed only by the Human Resources Section.

NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY CHECKS

All recommended applicants will be required to undertake a national criminal history check and certain apprehended violence order checks before an offer of employment will be made.

All information gained through employment screening will be treated with the utmost confidentiality by Council and will be held in a secure file, which can be accessed only by the Human Resources Section. Council will bear the cost of these checks.

YOUR APPLICATION

The Selection Panel will be relying on your online application responses to assess how well you meet the selection criteria, you are asked to address each of the criteria separately.

You will need to upload copies of *relevant* certificates, licences and/or qualifications and resume with your application. These need to be either word or pdf files.

SELECTION CRITERIA

It is essential that you are aware of the importance of addressing the selection criteria correctly. The selection criteria, particularly the essential criteria, are the most important part of your application. The Selection Panel will refer to all of the information in your application when making decisions, but will concentrate primarily on the selection criteria for an analysis of your suitability for the position

The selection criteria in the position description clearly document the qualifications, skills, abilities, experience and knowledge that are considered necessary for a person to competently perform the duties of the position. By directly addressing the criteria you are given an opportunity to demonstrate to the Selection Panel that you are the best person for the job.

The following guidelines are given to assist you with the preparation of your statement of selection criteria:

- Ensure that you specifically address each of the selection criteria by outlining how your qualifications, skills, abilities, experience and knowledge meet the requirements of the position. To do this properly, you must read the selection criteria carefully and determine what each one is asking.
- When considering the length of your statement addressing the selection criteria, you should remember that it is quality, not quantity that counts. Critically analyse your statement and if a paragraph does not relate directly to the selection criteria, consider leaving it out. As a general rule, approximately half a typed A4 page should be sufficient for each criterion. Remember that the Selection Panel may have to read a considerable number of applications, so try not to include unnecessary information or be repetitive.
- The statement should consist of each of the selection criteria as a heading, with your written response underneath.

To complete each statement, Council recommends that the S.T.A.R. method be utilised:

- **★** Situation
- **★** Task
- * Activity / Action
- **★** Result

Carefully read the key selection criteria then describe a situation in which you have demonstrated this competency, write about the actual situation, what the task was, what activity or action you undertook (including delegation or team work), and the result of your efforts.

It is important to be very clear and concise in your response, ideally you will **not exceed one page** per selection criteria.

When using the S.T.A.R. method it may be useful to incorporate the below:

1. An initial statement - (situation)

This should be a clear statement of how you meet the criterion. For example:

```
"I demonstrate my ability to ... by ..."
"I possess these skills ..."
"My role as X demands that I..."
```

2. Supporting argument - (task, activity, result)

Justify your initial statement by showing how you meet the criterion. Identify the key issues for each selection criterion and include these in your response. Provide 1 or 2 examples that best demonstrate your skills, knowledge or abilities and cover as many of the relevant key issues as possible. The examples to include:

- Content what occurred and what you did;
- Context your responsibility: whether you were in charge, responsible or part of a team;
- Outcome what happened as a result? Was your work approved? Adopted? Successful? What difference did your work make to the organisation?

3. Validity statement

Validate your examples by showing supporting evidence. For example:

"Attached testimonials verify..." "Feedback from customers was..." "In support of my claims please contact..."

4. Concluding statement

Reinforce again why and how you meet the criterion. Relate your responses back to the criterion. For example:

"I believe that through this I have gained..."
"This demonstrates..."

Addressing the key selection criteria of the job is the most important part of your application. The panel will use all the information provided in your application and attachments provided, but will concentrate on the key selection criteria for an analysis of your qualifications, skills, ability, experience and knowledge.

Remember to address each of the key selection criteria so the panel can fully assess your application.

YOUR INTERVIEW

The Section Panel's task is to select the applicant that most closely fits the requirements of the position, as determined by the position description and selection criteria, or has the greatest potential to meet those requirements.

Your task is to determine whether the job is suitable for you and to convince the Selection Panel that you have displayed the greatest merit for appointment to the position.

The best indicator of future success is past performance in related positions. Accordingly, the Selection Panel will use the interview to ask applicants a set of specific, job-related questions to investigate past achievements and test knowledge, skills and abilities. The questions will be based on the selection criteria and all applicants who are interviewed will be asked the same set of questions.

Generally, all persons who are appointed to a Selection Panel will have received training in this area. If you feel that the Selection Panel, or a member of the Selection Panel, has asked you an irrelevant or inappropriate question that you feel may adversely affect your appointment to the position, it is your right to query this at the interview. An example might be a question in relation to your age or marital status.

We may use a combination of assessment methods to evaluate your application such as:

- Review of application (resume and online application form)
- Results of McQuaig Assessment
- Structured interview
- Case studies / role play (e.g. customer service interaction role play)
- Practical work-based skill testing (e.g. typing, construction, crane operation, claim processing)
- Written knowledge testing (e.g. knowledge of a particular legislation, best practice process etc)
- Other testing (e.g. motivation, personality)

It is imperative that you advise us of any special requirements/assistance that you need for any selection tests/tools.

Preparing Yourself for the Interview

The questions asked at the interview will generally be behaviour based, but still relevant to the selection criteria for the position you have applied for. You have the same access to the selection criteria as the Selection Panel, so if you put thought into preparing for the interview, there should be no surprises.

Some useful hints are:

- Carefully read the position description and in particular the selection criteria and role and functions of the position.
- Identify the meaning and requirements of the above.
- List key issues relating to each.

Give some thought to likely questions that would directly apply to the position description.

Depending on the position you may be given preparation time immediately prior to the interview, so that you can familiarise yourself with the questions. Please feel free to take notes at this stage.

Remember that the Selection Panel's task is to determine the best person for the job, not to put you under undue pressure. Try to relax and prepare yourself in ways that work best for you.

Answering and Asking Questions

This is a very important part of the selection process. It is important that you are honest, and answer the questions succinctly and clearly. It is helpful to be able to give examples of what you have done. Act positively and be enthusiastic about what you have to offer.

Listen carefully to the questions being put to you and query anything that you do not understand. If you have a 'mental block', ask the Panel if you can return to the question at a later point. Unless there are time constraints, this will usually be acceptable.

Remember that the interview is a two way process and that you may ask questions as well. In fact, if you have a few carefully considered questions about the position it may help to demonstrate your knowledge and enthusiasm.

Interview Expenses

Council may reimburse some of the expenses that you incur to attend the interview. This will vary from position to position. The contact person will be able to advise you in regard to this matter.

REFERENCE CHECKS

The checking of referees is a process used to confirm or clarify issues and claims that you have made in your application and interview. It is a requirement that information provided by applicants be verified by referees prior to an appointment being made. Referee checks will therefore be conducted on applicants that achieve the highest consideration in the selection process.

In the event that you are progressed from interview stage, you will be asked to provide details of two (2) referees. These should be work referees, unless you are unable to provide work referees due to insufficient previous experience.

You have a number of responsibilities to your referees:

- Ask if they are prepared to act as your referee.
- Notify your referees that you are applying for the position.
- When you have been shortlisted, give your referees a copy of the position description and selection criteria - this allows them time to prepare their response.
- You may want to give them a copy of your application as well.
- Advise the referee that they may receive an email or phone call from Council.

PRE-EMPLOYMENT FUNCTIONAL ASSESSMENT

Before an offer of employment is made, you will be required to undergo a pre-employment functional assessment carried out by a qualified physiotherapist. Functional assessments are designed to assess the health and fitness of applicants against the essential physical requirements of the position, identified in the Physical Demands and Work Environment sections of the position description. Medical information that does not affect an individual's ability to carry out the duties and responsibilities of the position is considered irrelevant and is not taken into account when determining an applicant's suitability for employment.

All information gained through medical examinations will be treated with the utmost confidentiality by Council and will be held in a secure file, which can be accessed only by the Human Resources Section.

In accordance with Council's EEO policies, reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions of the position.

PROBATION PERIOD

Most employees will undergo a probation period. The probation period is used to ensure that new employees are happy with their employment and have the capability to meet the requirements of the position. Supervisors will work closely with new staff at this stage to ensure that arrangements benefit both parties.

The length of the probation period will vary according to the position, but is usually three months (thirteen weeks). The letter of employment will outline the duration of the probation period and any conditions that apply. If for any reason the probation period is interrupted, this will be taken into consideration and the period will be adjusted accordingly.

During the probation period, new staff members are eligible for the same benefits as all other employees. If both parties are in agreement at the end of the probation period, employment will be confirmed as permanent.

CONFIDENTIALITY

All information gathered during the recruitment and selection process is considered confidential. Once the selection process has concluded and an appointment(s) has been made, information is placed in either a confidential recruitment file or on the successful applicant(s) personnel file. These files are held in a secure location and can only be accessed by the Human Resources Section. Applications and all attached information remain the property of the Glen Innes Severn Council.